
Town of Farmington 

Planning and Community Development Department 
356 Main Street 

Farmington, NH 03835 

 

 

 

 

FARMINGTON ZONING BOARD of ADJUSTMENT - AGENDA 
 

Meeting Type:  Regular Meeting 

Meeting Location: Board of Selectmen’s Chambers, Municipal Building, 356 Main Street, Farmington, NH 

Meeting Date:  Thursday – March 7, 2024 

Meeting Time:  7:00PM 

 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

2. Approval of the Prior Minutes 

• November 2, 2023, Meeting Minutes 

 

3. Old Business  

 

4. New Business 

 

A. Public Hearing for an Equitable Waiver of Dimensional Requirements by Donald Howard, Tax Map 

U12, Lot 13. A request has been made for an Equitable Waiver of Dimensional Requirements under 

Table 2.04 (B) Space and Bulk Standards to allow a replacement shed within the 15ft minimum side 

setback. The property is in the Urban Residential District. 

 

5. Any Other Business Before the Board 

 

6. Adjournment 

 

 

John Scruton, Chairman 

Farmington Zoning Board of Adjustment 



 Page 1 

 

Memo 

To: Zoning Board of Adjustment 

From: Kyle Pimental, Director of Planning and Community Development 

Date: 2/29/2024 

Re:  March Zoning Board Meeting 

 
Good evening, 
 
Please note the following communication from the Town’s Planning and Community Development Department.  
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Review and Approval of November 2, 2023 Minutes 
 

3. Old Business 
 

4. New Business 
 

A. Public Hearing for an Equitable Waiver of Dimensional Requirements by Donald Howard, Tax Map 
U12, Lot 13. A request has been made for an Equitable Waiver of Dimensional Requirements under 
Table 2.04 (B) Space and Bulk Standards to allow a replacement shed within the 15ft minimum side 
setback. The property is in the Urban Residential District. 

 
a. Noticing Requirements 

All public hearing requirements, as set forth by RSA 676:7, have been met. This includes 
notifying all abutters that were listed in the application by certified mail, as defined by RSA 
21:53, stating the time and place of the hearing not less than 5 days before the date fixed for 
the hearing. The abutters list was reviewed by the Planning Secretary for accuracy prior to the 
letters being mailed out. A copy of the abutter letter is included in the packets. A public notice of 
the hearing was also placed in the Seacoast Media Group newspaper (in both hard copy and 
digital formats) not less than 5 days before the date fixed for the hearing.  
 

b. Equitable Waiver of Dimensional Requirements 
When a lot or other division of land, or structure thereupon, is discovered to be in violation of a 
physical layout or dimensional requirement imposed by a zoning ordinance enacted pursuant 
to RSA 674:16, the zoning board of adjustment shall, upon application by and with the burden 
of proof on the property owner, grant an equitable waiver from the requirement, if and only if 
the board makes all of the following findings: 
 

i. That the violation was not noticed or discovered by any owner, former owner, owner's 
agent or representative, or municipal official, until after a structure in violation had 
been substantially completed, or until after a lot or other division of land in violation 
had been subdivided by conveyance to a bona fide purchaser for value; 

ii. That the violation was not an outcome of ignorance of the law or ordinance, failure to 
inquire, obfuscation, misrepresentation, or bad faith on the part of any owner, owner's 
agent or representative, but was instead caused by either a good faith error in 
measurement or calculation made by an owner or owner's agent, or by an error in 
ordinance interpretation or applicability made by a municipal official in the process of 
issuing a permit over which that official had authority; 



 Page 2 

 

iii. That the physical or dimensional violation does not constitute a public or private 
nuisance, nor diminish the value of other property in the area, nor interfere with or 
adversely affect any present or permissible future uses of any such property; and 

iv. That due to the degree of past construction or investment made in ignorance of the 
facts constituting the violation, the cost of correction so far outweighs any public 
benefit to be gained, that it would be inequitable to require the violation to be 
corrected. 

 
Waivers shall be granted under this section only from physical layout, mathematical 
dimensional requirements, and not from use restrictions. An equitable waiver granted under 
this section shall not be construed as a nonconforming use, and shall not exempt future use, 
construction, reconstruction, or additions on the property from full compliance with the 
ordinance. This section shall not be construed to alter the principle that owners of land are 
bound by constructive knowledge of all applicable requirements. This section shall not be 
construed to impose upon municipal officials any duty to guarantee the correctness of plans 
reviewed by them or property inspected by them. 

 

c. Planning Department Comments 
As explained in the applicant’s narrative, the prior shed had existed in this location (within the 
side setback) for many years. The Code Enforcement Officer did not know of or receive any 
complaints until the applicant began replacing the shed, in which a formal complaint was filed 
by a neighbor. 

 
5. Any Other Business Before the Board 

 
6. Adjournment 

 
 
Upon receipt of this correspondence, if any ZBA member has additional questions or would like to follow up with staff, 
please contact Kyle Pimental at kpimental@strafford.org.  
 

 
Respectfully, 
-Kyle Pimental, Director of Planning and Community Development 

mailto:kpimental@strafford.org


 

Farmington Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes 11-02-2023  Page 1 
 

Town of Farmington 

Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, November 2, 2023 

356 Main Street-Farmington, NH 03835 

Board Members Present:                                                       Others Present: 

John Scruton, Chairman                                                          Tracy Hayes, applicant 

Joe Pitre, Vice Chairman                                                         Janet Hackett, abutter 

John David Aylard, Clerk/Secretary 

Bill Fisher 

Bob Morgan 

1). Call to Order:  

Chairman Scruton called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 

2). Pledge of Allegiance:  

All present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3).Review of Minutes:  

September 7, 2023- Public Session Minutes- No errors or omissions 

Motion: (Pitre, second Morgan) to approve the minutes as written passed 4-0-1 (Aylard 

abstained). 

4).Old Business: None 

5). New Business:  

Public Hearing for a Variance by Tracy Hayes, Tax Map U12, Lot 9. A request has been made 

for a Variance under Table 2.04 (B) Space and Bulk Standards. The applicant is requesting a 

Variance for relief from the maximum new residential density standards that require one unit 

per acre and be allowed to convert two existing offices into two apartments, where only one is 

permitted. The property is in the Urban Residential District. 

Chairman Scruton read the above public hearing notice aloud and said all public hearing 

requirements have been met for noticing and this request for a Variance is a specific restriction 

in the Zoning Ordinance that they’re asking to be able to not apply in this situation. He asked if 

the applicant wanted to come forward and make a presentation. 

Applicant Tracy Hayes came forward and said the building is very new and it’s already set up as 

an office space within each unit. She said there is an upstairs unit and a downstairs unit and 

within each one there is already an office space so what they are looking to do is to convert the 

two which are completely separate with no connections between the two.  

She said they are looking to convert each unit into a one bedroom apartment and the lot is 1.6 



 

Farmington Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes 11-02-2023  Page 2 
 

acres so they are technically .39 acres short of being a 2 acre lot to have the 2 different units. 

Mr. Pitre asked what the neighborhood looks like and about the character of the neighborhood. 

Ms. Hayes said the neighborhood is almost entirely residential. 

Mr. Pitre asked for the past use of this building. 

Ms. Hayes said in the very recent past a plumbing/heating business was in one unit and upstairs 

there was an electrical company. She said they didn’t do any business out of there they just 

housed their equipment and vehicles there. She said previous to that it was a store at one 

point, a pizza place at one point and Mrs. Hackett just informed her that previous to that it was 

a single family home. 

Mr. Scruton asked if this building was converted from a single family home. 

Ms. Hayes said no the building was torn down in 2020 and rebuilt. 

Mr. Scruton said he noticed she is planning to continue a commercial use so there would be a 

commercial use and 2 residences on the property. 

Ms. Hayes said the garage is completely separate from the 2 units there isn’t even a door or 

anything to connect the two. She said they are looking to potentially have some type of 

commercial use in the 2 bay garage something fairly quiet so it doesn’t disturb any tenants. 

Mr. Pitre asked if that is on the right hand side of the building when facing it from the street. 

Ms. Hayes said yes. 

Mr. Scruton asked Ms. Hayes if she wanted to make a presentation on the 5 tests you have to 

pass in order to have a Variance approved.  

Ms. Hayes said she wrote it all down and she didn’t have anything to add.  

Mr. Scruton read aloud the 5 tests and the applicant’s response as stated on the Variance 

application as follows: 

1).The Variance will not be contrary to the public interest: 

Applicant response: The neighborhood is largely residential and we seeking to only add one 

extra unit in a nicely built fairly new building to allow more rental properties in Farmington. 

Mr. Scruton said he assumed she meant residential rental properties. 

Ms. Hayes said that’s correct.   

2). The spirit of the ordinance is observed:  

Applicant response: The proposed use is only increasing the residential max by one unit (1 

bedroom) so the spirit of the ordinance is still observed. 

3).Substantial justice is done:  

Applicant response: This proposal will increase the very limited rental market in Farmington in a 

newly well built building. 

4). The value of surrounding properties are diminished:  

Applicant response: The neighborhood is mainly residential and we are converting a 

commercial property to mixed use to allow for residential use. As the area is residential there 

would be no diminished value in neighboring properties with only an additional one bedroom 



 

Farmington Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes 11-02-2023  Page 3 
 

apartment. 

5).Literal enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance would result in an unnecessary 

hardship:  

Applicant response: The property is currently commercially zoned with 1.61 acres. The property 

needs an additional .39 acres to increase the residential units by one additional one bedroom 

unit (no additional acreage is available). The general public purpose of the ordinance 

prohibition is o prevent a large number of residences in a small physical location. We are only 

looking to increase it by one 1 bedroom apartment and therefore is no fair and substantial 

relationship. As we are simply increasing it by 1 small apartment the proposed use is 

reasonable.  

Mr. Scruton asked if she wanted to add anything to that. 

Ms. Hayes said if it were to stay commercial for them it would be a hardship in that it’s very 

difficult to find commercial tenants. She said they are looking to convert it to residential to help 

increase the residential market and be able to rent out an apartment. 

Mr. Scruton said it seems that they want it both ways-they want to keep the commercial and 

add a residential. 

Ms. Hayes said they are not keeping the offices as commercial those 2 they want to completely 

convert to residential and they are just looking to keep the garage as commercial. She said the 

garage is not built as a home garage and she couldn’t tell them how high the ceilings are and 

guessed they are probably more than 2 stories high. I don’t know what other use we would 

have for that property other than as a commercial location she said.  

Mr. Pitre said he would like to hear from Mr. Fisher on what the proposed zoning changes are 

for the coming year from the Planning Board.  

Mr. Fisher said the zoning changes they’re proposing are still in the “infant” stage. He said they 

are trying to hammer out some things and have it ready for public hearings in December. He 

said they are looking at increasing the density of properties in the Rural Residential from one 

unit per acre to one unit per half acre.  

He said it has been noted that affordable housing is a big issue within the state of NH and 

looking at surrounding towns they’re all changing their density requirements and this gets us 

more into keeping with surrounding towns but only the Urban Residential and the Rural 

Residential not in the Agricultural Residential. He said that’s all in the future and it has to be 

voted on at Town Meeting and they will see how the public feels about it.  

Mr. Pitre asked what the requirements were when zoning first came to Farmington in 1979 and 

if he knew what the density was.  

Mr. Fisher said he was not here at that time but for the past 10 years or so it has been 1 unit 

per acre in the UR.  

Mr. Pitre said prior to that it was 1 unit per half acre per residence actually and that seemed to 

work well. He said the legislature has been looking at this very closely and they appropriated 



 

Farmington Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes 11-02-2023  Page 4 
 

$100 million for housing because we have such a shortage and we don’t have the workforce 

and the workforce we have is getting up in age and aging out of that. He said they have to 

attract outside persons to the state because if we don’t who is going to do the plumbing and 

the electrical and a lot of things we normally get done those people are already retired and it’s 

a big problem.  

He said the Gov. and the legislature are looking at that and trying to fix that and some of the 

proposed zoning would be curtailed in these towns and the state would take over that role 

because the state enables you to do things and that’s something to be thinking about.  

Mr. Fisher said it’s noted that the population of Farmington is decreasing and one of the 

reasons is not enough housing. He said the Rt. 11 Corridor Study which there’s going to be a 

meeting on later in Nov. has shown that around 2,000 people are leaving Farmington daily that 

live here and going to other towns to work and then coming back home again and as much as 

6,000 people are bypassing Farmington on the Rt. 11 corridor and going to other towns. 

Mr. Scruton said they were wandering a little ways away from the topic at hand although ever 

since the shoe factories closed most people moved to other communities and commuted to 

other communities for work. He asked if there any other comments/questions from the board. 

Hearing none he opened the hearing to public comments at 7:15 p.m.  

Pearl Lane resident Janet Hackett said Ms. Hayes said she would like to do a business in those 

garages and she was curious what the business might be. 

Ms. Hayes said she didn’t have a business in mind. She said being mindful of the tenants living 

in the same building she was look for something fairly quiet so she got a list of allowed 

businesses and uses from the Planning Director so things like a church or a store or things like 

that are all allowed but she hasn’t put out any feelers to see what could possibly go there until 

she came here so she definitely didn’t have anything specific in mind.    

She said they do own other rental properties and one of the other properties she has owned in 

the past was a garage or a mechanic’s business and she is very mindful of how loud and busy 

that can be so that wouldn’t be anything she is specifically looking for. 

Mr. Scruton said for example in Barrington there’s a set of business condos that basically are 

huge garages where plumbers, electricians and others store a lot of their material in their truck 

at night because of zoning issues where they live. He said he thought some kind of activity like 

that would be quiet but Mrs. Hayes’ point about not allowing car repair in those businesses 

would make sense. 

Ms. Hayes said they have a lot of connections and in the past somebody said some type of 

storage in there so that would be one of the things they would consider. 

Mr. Scruton asked if she would be willing to have some type of restriction on the future 

businesses in there as far as not being something that results in a lot noise. 

Ms. Hayes said absolutely. She said they are landlords for other units currently as well and 

that’s one of the things they always consider is tenant enjoyment of the premises.  



 

Farmington Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes 11-02-2023  Page 5 
 

She said the downstairs unit has a handicapped ramp and wide doors as it was built to be 

handicapped accessible. She said when they add a shower to the bathroom to make it an 

apartment there just isn’t enough room to make it a fully ADA accessible apartment for the 

handicapped but they’re mindful that somebody may want to use the ramp or be staying in the 

apartment not going out to work all day and it’s definitely something they’d not want to have 

them sharing a wall with somebody who’s very loud.  

Mr. Scruton said they received 2 letters from abutters and read aloud the first letter from David 

and Patricia Sprague: “As abutters to 83 Charles St. my wife and I would like to not allow a 

variance. We are unable to attend the meeting.”  

Mr. Scruton said this does not contain the reasons he does not want a variance to be allowed. 

He said the other abutters Frank and Pamela Lord wrote and addressed each of the 5 points of 

the variance that need to be made and read each of those points into the record as follows:  

“We oppose the above request for variance as totally and completely in disregard of the 

ordinance that specifies one single dwelling unit per acre in an Urban Residential District. This 

increased density is out of line with the surrounding neighborhood. There is no reason to go 

against this ordinance other than to profit the developer. And that is not a reason. Further it 

fails to satisfy the ZBA decision criteria for the granting of a variance. 

1). The Variance Will Not Be Contrary to Public Interest- it most certainly will. The essential 

characteristic of the upper Charles St. section of Rt. 153 is one of lightly wooded open space 

and un-crowded single family homes scattered throughout the neighborhood. Incorporating an 

apartment building into an otherwise established neighborhood of single family homes would 

interrupt the consistent tenure of the existing structures, jeopardize the rural quiet atmosphere 

and set precedence for further development that this very ordinance was created and intended 

to prevent. 

2). The Spirit of the Ordinance is Observed-Although the deed of record indicates the property 

consists of 1.60 acres less than .5 acre is inhabitable. The remaining property consists of sloping 

wetlands suitable for wildlife only. Therefore doubling the allowed density only serves to 

constrict what is already insufficient square footage necessary to be consistent with 

surrounding properties. 

3). Substantial Justice is Done - No gain to the general public will flow from this project. 

4). The Values of Surrounding Properties are not Diminished- The property barely meets the 

minimum side setback to our property and increasing the density of the property will further 

compromise the essential character of the locality and more importantly negatively impact the 

value of our property as well as that of our neighbors. 

5). Literal Enforcement of the Provisions of the Ordinance Would Result in an Unnecessary 

Hardship- Not at all. The zoning ordinance allows for a single dwelling unit to be built on the 

location and the applicant was aware of this when the property was purchased. With proper 

variance approval the building can be converted to residential and the developer is free to avail 



 

Farmington Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes 11-02-2023  Page 6 
 

herself of that opportunity. It’s our hope that the Board of Zoning Adjustment will find our 

concerns reasonable and act to preserve what has been a quiet, quaint and desirable urban 

residential neighborhood by denying this request for a variance”. 

Mr. Scruton asked if there were any comments from the board. 

Mr. Morgan asked if this building was converted into an apartment if they’d have no problem 

with it. He asked if it was a single family building with 4 people living in it or 2 apartments with 

4 people living in it what is the difference.  

Mr. Scruton said that is a good rhetorical question. 

Ms. Hayes said there would only ever be 2 one bedroom apartments there is no space to create 

them to make it any larger than that. 

Mr. Scruton asked if she would agree to that stipulation- two 1 bedroom apartments. 

Ms. Hayes said yes absolutely. 

Mr. Fisher said in the past looking at putting in apartments on various pieces of property 

around town one of the biggest drawbacks has been parking and in this case there is more than 

ample parking on this piece of property. He said he agreed that there is no difference between 

one unit with 4 people or 2 units with 2 people because it’s not going to affect the parking. He 

said for 2 units you need 1.5 parking spaces per unit and in this case there are about 10 spaces 

for 2 units. 

Ms. Hayes said in the front and there is ample parking in the back and there are 2 entrances to 

every space. She said there 2 entrances to the upstairs and 2 entrances to the downstairs and 

there are 2 entrances to the garage and the spaces are marked so no one would argue over 

parking. 

Mr. Fisher said the Lords said the variance will be contrary to public interest but he does not 

agree with that. He said it’s currently a business area that had 2 businesses in there and that 

created traffic, noise, etc. and it’s now going back to a residential use which seems to be a 

lower impact on the surrounding area and returning it to what it was originally years ago which 

was a residential area.  

He said she is requesting 2 units, it’s 1.61 acres so it’s less than a half acre under size. I don’t 

see that as being detrimental because the footprint of the building is not changing and there 

are no changes to the property other than rehabilitating the inside of these 2 office spaces into 

apartments so it should have no effect on the amount of land that is there. It’s already been 

granted to use an undersized acreage for 2 businesses I can’t see the harm in putting in 2 

apartments knowing that apartments are needed in this area he said. 

Mr. Pitre said the .39 shyness from the 2 acres is important. He said it’s a small amount and its 

possibly the best use of this property the way it is proposed so that’s his stance. 

Mr. Scruton said a year from now that might not be an issue but today they have to consider 

what the current zoning is. 

Mr. Pitre said it’s still shy and whenever they have an encroachment on the setbacks we look at 



 

Farmington Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes 11-02-2023  Page 7 
 

the size of the encroachment and some they have denied because there is too much 

encroachment in that setback or in case the size of the lot. He said that makes it .6 per 

residence so he thought it was a moot point.  

Mr. Fisher said a precedence was not set 2 or 3 months ago when the granted permission for a 

variance off of Grondin Drive for 8 units to be on 3 acres. He said they granted that variance 

and this is less of an impact than that was. 

Mr. Aylard said but those were all pre-existing and they weren’t changing anything.  

Mr. Fisher said this is basically pre-existing they’re not changing the footprint they’re just 

rehabbing it and redeveloping it into 2 rental units. 

Ms. Hayes said the only thing that needs to be changed is a shower added in the bathroom. 

Mr. Fisher said even though there are some small setbacks to this but it’s nothing more than 

what they have granted in the past.  

Mr. Pitre said variances allow a little difference from what the actual regulations say. 

Mr. Scruton said the purpose of the Zoning Board is to grant reasonable relief to the ordinance 

if in fact these 5 tests are met. 

Mr. Fisher asked if they need to take each one of these and give their reasons under the new 

state laws. 

Mr. Scruton said yes. He then called for a motion that the variance:  

1). Will not be contrary to the public interest: 

 Motion: So moved by Mr. Fisher and seconded Mr. Morgan. 

Mr. Fisher said they are returning it from a business back to a residential area which is in 

keeping with the area so it’s only improving the area by taking out the businesses and putting in 

residential units. He said as far as possible business use in the future that is not what this 

variance is requesting they’re just requesting the 2 residential units. 

Mr. Scruton said he was going to recommend that at the end that there be 2 stipulations which 

Ms. Hayes has agreed to at this point that help on this not being contrary to the public interest. 

He said there are 2 one bedroom apartments and the business that will go in there will be 

something that is quiet. 

Mr. Fisher asked if they can legally make stipulations. He said he knows she has agreed to it but 

asked if they can legally put that as a clause to their final decision.  

Mr. Scruton said he believes they can because if this was going to be two 3 bedroom 

apartments that would be a whole different story as far as the public interest goes. He said it’s 

within the current footprint, it’s one bedroom (per apartment) and he would not vote in favor 

of it being in the public interest if it was different than what is proposed here.  

Mr. Fisher said if it was different than what is proposed here then his reasoning would be 

completely different but putting that in would be a Planning Board stipulation not a variance 

stipulation. It would be up to the Planning Board to say you can or cannot do this. 

Mr. Scruton said he disagreed but they could talk about that when they get there and he just 



 

Farmington Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes 11-02-2023  Page 8 
 

wanted to make that point. 

Mr. Aylard said he agreed the commercial aspect of it doesn’t allow it to be all residential. 

Mr. Pitre said the primary interest is it’s going from commercial to residential. 

Mr. Scruton said the primary use is going to be residential according to the statements that 

were made at this point. He said if she was putting a casino with lots of noise in the 2 car garage 

that would be a whole different story. 

Mr. Fisher said that would be a Planning Board decision and that would be granting 2 principal 

uses which is allowed by the Town’s zoning ordinance now per property so it can be a business 

and residential on the same piece of property. But what that business is, is up to the Planning 

Board to say not us he said. 

Mr. Scruton disagreed but that’s not the vote they are taking right now. He said he was going to 

put the stipulations on in the final decision. 

Mr. Pitre asked what the common practice has been and what they did with the downtown. 

Mr. Fisher said they put a stipulation on before and they got in trouble for it. He said when they 

told that one property owner he couldn’t dig deeper than “x” amount of feet because he was 

going to hit the water table that was a Planning Board issue not the Zoning Board. We’re only 

here to grant the variance not put restrictions on how that property is used if they grant that 

variance. 

Mr. Scruton said he would grant the variance based upon on what is being presented which is 2 

one bedroom apartments and a quiet commercial use.  

Mr. Fisher said a commercial use is not being put and the variance request is for 2 residential 

properties in the district and it says nothing about a business. 

Mr. Scruton said she is keeping business in the garage. 

Mr. Fisher said that’s a side issue but it is not what they’re here for tonight. We’re here to grant 

or deny a variance to put in 2 residential units. He said that’s what the variance request is the 

variance request is not 2 residential uses and 1 business use. 

Mr. Morgan asked if they granted this variance if it would make the entire property residential 

so she would have to go back to the Zoning Board. 

Mr. Fisher said no but in the future she may decide to do a business use that is 2 uses on 1 

property which is allowed by the zoning ordinance but the restrictions on what goes in there is 

a Planning Board issue not us. 

Mr. Pitre said it’s in the variance application and it says “and keeping the garage as commercial 

space”. 

Mr. Scruton said it’s 2 offices to 2 one bedroom apartments and he thought they could specify 

that because that’s what she asked for and 1 commercial space and pointed to it on the 

application. 

Mr. Fisher said that’s not what the public hearing is. He said the public hearing is to request 

relief from the maximum new residential density standards that require 1 unit per acre and be 



 

Farmington Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes 11-02-2023  Page 9 
 

allowed to convert 2 existing offices into 2 apartments where only 1 is permitted. That’s why 

we’re here tonight nothing to do with business that may be on the property in the future he 

said.  

Mr. Scruton said they will vote on that at the end and right now they are voting on public 

interest. He read the motion was the variance would not be contrary to the public interest and 

called for the vote. 

Vote: the motion passed 5-0.   

2). The spirit of the ordinance is observed:  

Motion: So moved by Mr. Pitre, seconded by Mr. Morgan.  

Mr. Scruton asked if Mr. Pitre’s argument was that .39 acres is a small amount and that there is 

residential in the area. 

Mr. Pitre said yes.  

Vote: the motion passed 4-1 (Aylard opposed).  

3). Substantial Justice is Done: 

Motion: (Fisher, second Morgan) that substantial justice is done; 

Mr. Fisher said the reason is that we’re gaining residential rental properties in a town that 

needs residential rental properties so there is a gain to the general public.   

Vote: the motion passed 5-0.  

4). The value of the surrounding properties are not diminished:  

Motion: So moved by Mr. Pitre, seconded by Mr. Fisher. 

Mr. Pitre said the character of the neighborhood is not changed significantly.  

Mr. Scruton said there was no evidence presented of a reduction in value. He said there was a 

general statement made by Mr. Lord that it negatively impacted the value but no evidence to 

support that statement.  

Vote:  the motion passed 5-0. 

5). Literal enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance would result in an unnecessary 

hardship:  

Motion: So moved by Mr. Pitre, seconded by Mr. Morgan. 

Mr. Pitre said again the .39 acres comes into play it’s a very small amount and there’s plenty of 

parking. He said they have watched other properties go into disarray because of commercial 

use and this is probably a good use for the property and it fits more into the residential use 

within the neighborhood. He said it could possibly cause a hardship if they don’t approve it 

because it’s already been the effort to rent it out to commercial property but obviously there’s 

no use there now.  

Mr. Scruton said the hardship is the uniqueness of the property as it currently exists as far as it 

is reasonable what is being proposed. 

Mr. Fisher said one of the requirements is that no fair and substantial relationship exists 

between the general public purposes of the ordinance provision and the specific application of 



 

Farmington Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes 11-02-2023  Page 10 
 

that provision to the property and that the proposed use is a reasonable one. He said there is a 

substantial relationship between the general public in that we’re gaining residential rental 

property and it’s a reasonable use of the property actually returning it back to what it was 

before it was used for commercial. I agree there would be a hardship created if we did not 

grant the variance he said. 

Vote: the motion passed 5-0.  

Chairman Scruton asked if there was a motion to grant the variance as requested. 

Motion: (Pitre, second Morgan) to approve the variance as requested;  

Mr. Aylard said in order to keep it in the spirit of the ordinance he tends to agree with Mr. 

Scruton that some stipulation needs to be made on the garage that it stays…that if they are 

going to pigeon hole this into family that it keeps in that theme either storage or something low 

impact to the community. 

Mr. Fisher said that would be making a motion for a future use that we don’t even know is 

going to happen. He said she has not made up her mind whether or there’s going to be any 

business use in there and to tell her she can’t do something that might happen in the future 

would be contrary to her interest and the Town’s interest.  

He said she may decide to take that garage when she does some study and make it into a one 

bedroom loft apartment and put in a staircase and a loft on the top of it and put in a third unit 

and she would have to come back before us to do that but who knows what is going to happen 

in the future. To make a stipulation on it now is a Planning Board decision and not part of what 

we’re here for tonight he said.    

Mr. Aylard said they are here tonight to make sure it meets and stays with the spirit of the 

neighborhood and the ordinance and asked how that is not part of this.  

Mr. Fisher said they are here tonight to vote on a variance and not put restrictions on that 

variance. 

Mr. Scruton said they are approving the variance as requested. 

Mr. Aylard said to fit this, the spirit of the ordinance being residential rental that is part of this 

because it makes an impact if something… This could all be good but the garage can be ugly and 

make this not fit this he said. 

Mr. Pitre asked if she decided that we granted the variance as residential could she use the 

garage for storing items as a commercial business.  

Mr. Scruton said yes but then asked without going for a site review. 

Mr. Fisher said she would have to go for a site review to start a new business in there as a 

storage unit.    

Mr. Pitre said she is already in the business. 

Mr. Fisher said storing your own stuff is not a business storing somebody else’s and charging 

them rental space is a business. He said if she was to open up a storage business when before it 

was approved for contractors to use for their purposes are 2 different types of businesses and 



 

Farmington Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes 11-02-2023  Page 11 
 

would have to come before site review. 

Mr. Scruton said he thought if she was renting it to an electrical contractor who kept his stuff 

there it wouldn’t need site review. He asked the board to return to the motion and that the 

motion is to approve the variance as requested. 

Mr. Pitre said there was another motion made afterwards on restrictions. 

The Recording secretary noted that Mr. Aylard said he would like to make a motion but didn’t 

actually do so. 

Mr. Fisher said they could have 2 motions one to grant or not grant the variance and a second 

motion for any stipulations to be added to the granting of the variance. 

Mr. Scruton said if they do the first one then they are done with it. He said she asked to convert 

the 2 offices to 2 one bedroom apartments and keep the garage as commercial and this allows 

her to do it. We’re approving the variance as requested he said. 

Mr. Fisher said the public hearing is only for the 2 rental units even though in her statement in 

her application she requested to use the garage as a business. He said as advertised and what 

was put out to the public is we are here to discuss the residential units only nothing about 

what’s in there for business. He said if that’s the case they need a new public hearing and they 

need to continue this to add businesses to it or they just stick with the residential as it is in the 

public hearing. What the Town put out and what is lawful is this public hearing is on residential 

units and not on commercial uses he said.     

Chairman Scruton called for the vote on the motion to approve the variance as requested. 

Vote: the motion passed 5-0.                

6). Any Other Business before the Board: None 

7). Adjournment:  

Motion: (Pitre, second Morgan) to adjourn the meeting passed 5-0 at 7:51 p.m.  

 

Kathleen Magoon 

Recording Secretary 

 

____________________________________ 

John Scruton, Chairman     

    











 

Town of Farmington 
356 Main Street 

Farmington, NH 03835 

Phone: (603) 755-2208 • Fax: (603) 755-9934 
A Bicentennial Community 

              1798 - 1998 

 
 

February 20, 2024 

 

 

 

Dear Abutter:  

 

Notice is hereby given that the Farmington Zoning Board of Adjustment will meet on Thursday, 

March 7, 2024, at 7:00PM in the Municipal Offices Building, 356 Main Street to hold a:  

 

Public Hearing for an Equitable Waiver of Dimensional Requirements by Donald Howard, 

Tax Map U12, Lot 13. A request has been made for an Equitable Waiver of Dimensional 

Requirements under Table 2.04 (B) Space and Bulk Standards to allow a replacement shed within 

the 15ft minimum side setback. The property is in the Urban Residential District. 

 

To make a request for more information on this proposal, please visit or reach out to the Planning 

and Community Development Department at the Municipal Offices Building at 356 Main Street. 

 

 

Sincerely: 

 

 

John Scruton, Chairman 

Farmington Zoning Board of Adjustment 

 



60-1
60-3

60-2

60-4

60-5

60

3

15

4

1

6

5

3

BUNKER ST

CROSS ST

LA
WR

E N
C E

L N
( PV

T )

MT
VERNON

ST

BLAINE 
ST

SEYMOUR CT

PEARL LN

CROSS ST MILTON RD

IAN'S WAY (PVT)

CHARLES 
ST

61

17-1

21
22

18 2019

17-3

17-2

17-4
17-5

17

24
23

114

41-1
MH3841-1

MH39

34

27

29

3332
30

2528

35
37 36

41-1
MH65

41-1
MH6441-1

MH63
41-1

MH6241-1
MH61

56-346

44 56
56-1-C1
56-1-C2

55

56-2-C1
56-2-C2

43 45

40

57

23
58

59

4
3

2

22

19

21

20

18
1617

5

1514 2412

13

7

6

8-1

10-1
9-1

9

8
10

11
6

8 9

1
3

5
7

3

4

2

5

1

2

2523-6 26

23-7

24

23-4

23-3

4
2

41-1

37-1
1

9
8

'

198'

1
9

4
.7

4
'

218.54'

188.87'

132'

132'

132'

132'

1
9

8
'

1
9

8
'

1
1

2
.7

9
'

2
5
3
.7

4
'

5
3
.7

6
'611.12'

396'

1
8

8
.0

1
'

55.35'

1
7

5
.3

5
'

1
7

6
'

1
7

6
'

115.5'

115.5'

115.5'

115.5'

1
7

6
'

1
7

6
.8

7
'

150'

6
8

'

6
7

.8
5

'

65.63'

1
5

8
'+

/-

110'+/- 130'+/- 78'+/-

178'+/-

9
0

'+
/-

5
5
'

100'

9
'

80'+/- 30'+/- 10'+/- 118'+/-

1
5

4
'

1
5

4
'

1
5
4

'

24'

209.12'

113.02'

66' 66'

66' 66'

1
6

5
'

1
6
5

'

80'

105'+/-

3
6

2
.1

7
'

85.58'

43.4
5'

4
7
.3

9
'

2
6

6
.8

'

238.08'

253.81'

1
4

0
.3

1
'

6
9

.3
7

'
1
1
5

.5
'

5
0
'+

/-

1
4
8

.7
3

'

114.5'

11
0
.8

3
'

45.02'

61
.8

7'

16.12'

144.2'

75'

9
4
.2

3
'

85.64'

150'

1
7

5
.9

1
'

220.65'

9
5
.7

6
'

198'

181.5'

170' 4
8

.5
'

1
1

5
.5

'

100'

1
0

0
'

100'

1
0

0
'

122.5'5
0

'+
/-

1
5

2
'+

/-

238'+/-

90'

214.5'

2
1
0
.3

4
' 8

7
.5

'

226.32'

247.5
1'

83.5'

1
2
2
.8

4
'

9
9
'

2
2
6

.7
'

1
2
7

.7
'

213.82'

221.18'

309.29'

1
2

3
'

1
2

2
.6

9
'

94.75'

315.35'

357.1'

4
8
.3

6
'

360'+/-

1
2

3
'+

/-

107.25'

1
2

3
.5

'

1
2

3
.5

'

94.75'90.5'

90.5'

742'

743.5'

1
2

0
'

360'

3
1

0
'+

/-

125'+/-

1
6

8
'

150'

1
7
0
'

1
7
1
'

3
0
5
'

11
5.5'

11
3
.5

'

3
3
0
'

11
0
'+

/-

300'+/-

100' 178'

170'

7
6

'

7
6

'

9
8

.5
'

9
8

.5
'

168'+/-

165'

8
2

.5
'

8
2

.5
'

165'

1
3

2
'

1
3

2
'

165'
157.75'

3
0
8
.3

9
'

2
4

6
.6

2
'

87.88'

178.17'

1
2
0

'

120'

1
8

8
.8

7
'

50'5
0

' 75'

1
0
4

'

1
1

8
'

125'

218'+/-

3
1

0
'+

/-

630'+/-

550'+/-

1
4
2

'+
/-

205'+/-

200'+/-

20'+
/- 395'+/-

3
2

0
'+

/-

99'

400
'

91'

80'

180'

2
5
5
'

127'

75'

222
'

132.82'

66.3'

139.23'

1
2

7
.6

'

1
7

1
.5

4
'

38.2'

1
2
5
'

125.7'

1
6

7
.1

'

124.8'

121'

1
8

8
.0

9
'

5
3

1
.9

8
'

4
4
6

.2
3

'

6
4
6

.7
2

'

1
6

5
'

123' 125.16' 121.18'

300'+/-

125' 88'

300'

4
8
5

'

5
2

0
'+

/-

1
3

2
'

1
3

2
'

123'

123'

1
3

0
'

1
2

5
'+

/-

178.48'

2
1
8

.6
7

'
2
1
0

.0
1

'

76.89'

1
2

0
.0

0
'

1
0
2

.2
0

'

539.67'

680'+/-

9
3
0
'+

/-

8
1
.1

'

3
1
2
.4

7
'

600'+/-

1414.81'

2
2
0
'

573.14'

775'+/-

9
2
0
'+

/-

736'

107.18'

109.17'

277.51'

81.93'

306.83'

8
0
.1

7
'

148.22'

1
0
2
.2

1
'

3
5
'+

/-

224.97'

7
1
'

1
0
0
'

45'+/-

2
1
0
'+

/-

3
2
7
.4

1
'

444.49'

979.5'

2269.52'

1
6
6
.8

2
'

20
0'

20
0'

602.62'

139.95'

154.26'
300'

140'

140' 230' 70'

2
5
0
'

2
0
0
'

2
0
0
'

200'

2
0
0
'

200'

144.54'

391'

150'

19
3'

1
0
4
.8

8
'

325.88'

1
1
4
.4

1
'

103.04'

20
0'

303.36'

20
2.

2' 390.94'

189.14'

8
0
.7

5
'

18'

90
0'

+/
-

685'+/-
265'

1
1
2
0
'+

/-

2
0
0
'+

/-

200' 20
0'

200'

20
0'

37

10

39
35

68

9

7470

15

29
33

17

19

53

21
25

49

16

67

9

73

615755

78

81 85

14
6

7066
81 85

58

63 71

5452

14 18 60

29

23

42

24

32 46
67 73

70

11
3

40

7 17

28

14 26

22
18

101

99

91

89

83

12

5

5

79

8

126

148

44

141

143

119

30

56

40

55

9
11 15

61

2
6

8
14

3

4.07 AC

1.34 AC

.34 AC

1 AC

3.8 AC

4 AC

1.51 AC
1.17 AC

1.2 AC

4.2 AC

8.2 AC

6.5 AC1.4 AC
2.01 AC

1.4 AC

0.9 AC

2 AC

1.27
AC

1.61 AC

1.6 AC 13 AC 15 AC

11.4 AC

16 AC
19 AC

1.7 AC

0.92 AC

2.27 AC1.65 AC 0.92 AC

1.41 AC

2.37 AC

3.22 AC

0.93 AC

U10

U11

R47

R48 Map U12
TAX PARCELS MAP

FARMINGTON
NEW HAMPSHIRE

THIS MAP IS FOR ASSESSMENT PURPOSES
ONLY. IT IS NOT INTENDED FOR LEGAL

DESCRIPTION OR CONVEYANCE.

Prepared by the
Strafford Regional Planning Commission

150 Wakefield St. Suite 12 Rochester, NH 03867
Phone: (603) 994-3500

Email: srpc@strafford.org
Date: 9/7/2023

Author: Jackson Rand, SRPC

Base data layers from ESRI, NH GRANIT, and the Town of Farmington.
These agencies and organizations have derived this data using a variety

of cited source materials, at different time frames, through different
methodologies, with varying levels of accuracy. As such, errors are

often inherent in GIS data and should be used for planning purposes
only.  Please visit the original location of the data, contact the original

host source, or contact SRPC for information on the full data set.

Legend
Parcels
Adjacent Map Sheets

ïCemetery
Rivers and Streams
Lakes and Ponds
Wetlands
Easements, Right-of-Way
Roads

D:\Local_R_Drive\M_Drive\Towns\Farmington\Tax_Maps\2023\MXD\TaxMaps_Farmington_2023_11x17.mxd

0 1,000 2,000500 Feet 2023

F

kpimental
Highlight












